Miele



Installation plan

PLW 8615

en - GB, AU, NZ

M.-Nr. 11 238 702

Contents

Information on the installation plan	3
Appliance dimensions	4
Installation notes	6
Installation	6
Plinth (FP)	6
Mobile plinth (RP)	6
Top-box panelling (TC)	6
Panelling on the customer's site	6
Multiple side-by-side installation	6
Supply lines	7
Installation area on the customer's site	7
Connections on the top-box panelling (TC)	8
Electrical connection	9
Clockwise rotating field	9
Steam connection (optional)	10
Compressed air connection	10
Network connection	11
Network protocols	11
Water connection	12
Water inlet	12
Drainage	13
Exhaust duct	15
Steam condenser (optional)	16
Steam condenser (SC)	16
Connection module	17
Inputs	17
Potential-free outputs	18
Technical data	19
Dimensions	19
Weight	19
Electrical connection	19
Steam connection (optional)	20
Compressed air connection	20
Water inlet	20
Drainage	21
Cooling circuit* (optional)	21
Exhaust air	21
Operating conditions	22
Emission values	22
Heat dissipation	22
Sound pressure level	22
Storage and transportation conditions	22

For safe installation and commissioning of the washer-disinfector
please read the installation plan, the service documentation, the
operating instructions and the programming manual.

This installation plan includes the dimensions of the washer-disinfector, the technical data and the installation requirements to be met on the customer's site.

The washer-disinfector is generally referred to as "the machine" in this installation plan.

The dimensions provided in figures are indicated in mm. Dimensions given in any other units are labelled accordingly.

The machine's equipment will vary by version and can be expanded with additional options. The installation plan describes the maximum equipment configuration.

Certain connections are not required for every equipment version, e.g. a steam connection or cold water connection for the steam condenser.

Optional extras	CT	Combi tank	
	DP	Drain pump	
	DU 900	Drying unit and top-box panelling	
	DU 900 RV	Drying unit and top-box panelling with ventilation slots	
	DV	Drain valve	
	EL	Electric heating	
	EL/S	Steam heating/electric heating	
	FP 900	Plinth	
	RP 900	Mobile plinth	
	SC	Steam condenser	
	TC 900	Top-box panelling	
Installation re- quirements		must only be installed and commissioned by the Miele rvice Department or a suitably authorised technician.	
	Installation should only be performed in accordance with valid reg- ulations, relevant standards and health and safety codes.		

Appliance dimensions





5

	Installation
Plinth (FP)	A plinth is needed for installing the machine. The plinth is fitted with height-adjustable feet and a drip tray for condensation water, for example.
Mobile plinth (RP)	If the machine is being set up with its back against a wall, it must be installed on a mobile plinth. If maintenance or servicing is required, the mobile plinth can then be used to move the machine away from the wall.
	The machine must be fitted with a drain pump (option) so that it can be moved on the mobile plinth.
Top-box panelling (TC)	The top-box panelling (TC) provides access to the technical equip- ment above the wash cabinet, e.g. the drying units, for maintenance and servicing purposes. To enable the top-box panelling to be placed pre-assembled on the machine, a clear height of at least 2.62 m is re- quired. If there is a clear height of between 2.50 m and 2.62 m, the top-box panelling must be dismantled. The individual parts must then be reassembled above the machine and riveted again.
	Mount the cover provided onto the top-box panelling using watertight hose feed-throughs. If stopcocks or screw connections are not water-tight, the cover will stop water getting into the machine.
Panelling on the customer's site	On the customer's site, mount the panelling with inspection flaps from the top-box panelling as far as the ceiling. Supply lines can be accessed from the outfeed side of the machine.
Multiple side-by- side installation	Several machines can be installed side-by-side in a row. A gap of 3– 6 mm is required between two machines or between a machine and a partition wall. The plinths of the individual machines can be connected together.

Supply lines

The connections for the supply lines are located above the top-box panelling on the machine.

The supply lines on the customer's site and the exhaust duct must stop 2650 mm above the top edge of the finished floor so that the top-box panelling (TC) can be mounted on the machine. A height of 2800 mm is recommended for the supply lines in the second row of the installation area; this provides easier access to the stopcocks.

Installation area on the customer's site

The supply lines on the customer's site must be located above the machine. The installation area requires minimum dimensions of 480 x 150 mm:



- 1 2 x demineralised water
- ² 1 x hot water
- ³ 2 x cold water
- ⁽⁴⁾ Cooling circuit flow (optional)
- ⁽⁵⁾ Compressed air, technical grade
- ⁽⁶⁾ Cold water intake, steam condenser (optional)
- ⑦ Steam supply pipe (optional)
- [®] Steam condensate pipe (optional)
- ⁽⁹⁾ Cooling circuit return line (optional)
- ⁽¹⁰⁾ Drain pump for waste water pipe (optional)

Connections on the top-box panelling (TC) The ducting and cables shown below are also routed through the machine's cover, but not in the installation area:



¹ Feed-throughs for:

- Mains connection cable
- Data cable
- Equipotential bonding (optional)
- External voltage for the potential-free contacts on the connection module (optional)
- Cables to the potential-free contacts on the connection module (optional)
- ⁽¹²⁾ Vent ducting
- ⁽³⁾ CEE socket for mains connection cable
- ⁽⁴⁾ Data cable for the Ethernet plug
- 1) to 10, see "Installation area on the customer's site"

Electrical connection

	All work on the electrical connection must be carried out by the Miele Customer Service Department or a qualified electrician. The installation of the machine must comply with measurement cat- egory CAT II in accordance with IEC 61010-1.
	The machine is connected to the electricity supply from above. You will need a power cable that is at least 1500 mm long inside the top- box panelling.
	The mains voltage must not fluctuate by more than ± 10 % around the nominal voltage.
Plug connection	The machine should be connected to the electricity supply via a socket. The CEE socket connection for the electrical connection is located inside the top-box panelling. The mains connection cable must be connected to the CEE socket connection on the customer's site.
Hard-wired	If the machine is hard-wired to the power supply, install a power switch capable of disconnecting the machine at all poles on the cus- tomer's site. This power switch must have a contact gap of at least 3 mm.
	The socket or the power switch must be accessible after the appli- ance has been installed. An electrical safety test must be carried out after installation and after any maintenance work. The mains connection cable must be laid protected from the risk of thermal damage.
Residual current device (RCD)	For added safety, every machine should be protected by an RCD type B with a trip current of 30 mA. The RCD must be installed so that it is easily accessible.
Clockwise rotat- ing field	Machine phases must be connected in the correct sequence (clock- wise rotating field). The clockwise rotating field determines the direc- tion in which the motorised drives in the machine will rotate.
Equipotential bonding	The machine is able to accommodate equipotential bonding. The ter- minal screw (M 8) is located on the infeed side, above the lift-up slid- ing door. Equipotential bonding should be carried out if possible on the cus- tomer's site.

Steam connection (optional)

Dual-heated machines with steam and electric heating (EL/S) must be connected to dry industrial steam. The hoses for steam and condensate can be pulled out of the top-box panelling by around 300 mm.

A stopcock, a dirt trap and a dewatering drain must be installed in the steam pipe on the customer's site.

Mount a non-return valve directly after the condensate trap on the customer's site to stop any knocking in the cold condensate pipes when the machine is starting up.

The connections on the customer's site must have the following flatsealing external threads:

- Steam supply pipe 3/4"
- Condensate discharge pipe 1/2"

Install stopcocks for the steam pipe and the condensate pipe on the customer's site.

The stopcocks must be accessible after the machine has been installed.

Compressed air connection

Oil-free, technical-grade compressed air is necessary for controlling the machine's door.

In machines with a steam connection, technical-grade compressed air is also needed for controlling the steam valves.

A stopcock and a socket with a female 1/2" quick-release lock must be provided on the customer's site for the connection as well.

The compressed air hoses can be pulled out of the top-box panelling by around 900 mm.

Network connection

The machine is fitted with an Ethernet interface. The RJ45 network connection is located inside the top-box panelling, above the wash cabinet.

A network connection must be provided above the machine on the customer's site. When installing the network cable and electrical connection in parallel, you will need a 1500 mm length of cable inside the top-box panelling. Use CAT5 network cables or higher.

⚠ Unauthorised access poses a health risk.

Settings in the cleaning machine, e.g. parameters for disinfection or the dispensing of process chemicals, may be changed as a result of unauthorised access via the network.

Under no circumstances should it be possible to access the cleaning machine via the Internet or other public or unsecured networks, either directly or indirectly (e.g. using port forwarding)!

The IP addresses from 192.168.10.1 to 192.168.10.255 are reserved for the Customer Service Department. They must never be set in the internal network.

- The machine should be operated only in a separate network 1. segment which meets one of the following requirements:
 - It is physically separated from other network segments
 - Access to the segment is restricted by a firewall or a router which has been configured accordingly
- 2. Limit access to this separate network segment to persons reguiring access in the course of their work.
- 3. Use strong passwords to protect access to systems that are connected to the machine.
- 4. Configure the Ethernet interface.

cols

The network connections and machines connected to the network must comply with IEC 62368-1.

Network proto-The machine supports communication via the following network protocols:

Network protocols	Description	Port
DHCPv4	Assigning dynamic IPv4 addresses	68/UDP
DHCPv6	Assigning dynamic IPv6 addresses	546/UDP
HTTPS	Web interface for configuring the cleaning machine	443/TCP

The ICMPv4 and ICMPv6 protocols are also supported.

Water connection

Water inlet

The machine must only be connected to fully vented pipework. A brief increase in the water pressure can damage components of the machine.

The quality of the incoming water must correspond to the drinking water specification of the country in which the machine is being operated.

The machine must be connected to cold, hot and demineralised water. The water inlet hoses can be pulled out of the top-box panelling by around 900 mm. The connections on the customer's site must have 3/4" flat-sealing external threads. Install stopcocks for the water inlet hoses on the customer's site.

The stopcocks must be accessible after the machine has been installed. Drainage The waste water must be collected via a sloping, suitably sized manifold ≥DN 100. The waste water pipes must be temperature-resistant to at least

94 °C. Mount an odour trap on the customer's site.

If several machines are being installed in a row, the manifold must be capable of collecting the corresponding volume of waste water. If the waste water is draining too slowly, the programme time can be extended in the machine's control system while the programme sequence is running. Also install a flow restrictor such as a reducer or an orifice on the drain valve.

Drain valve (DV) Water drains out through the drain valve by the force of gravity. Two core hole bores for waste water and floor tray drainage are required underneath the machine. The DN 50 connection pipes must be connected perpendicularly to the manifold with a slight bend in the direction of flow. The connection pipes must terminate so that they are flush with the finished floor level.



Detailed front view of the plinth area

You will also need a drain pipe of length "plinth height + 45 mm" to connect the machine's water drainage with the connection pipe.

Drain pump (DP) (optional) The machine can be fitted with a drain pump. The drain pump pumps the waste water to a floor drain or a waste water pipe on the ceiling. The maximum delivery head is 3000 mm.

Infeed/outfeed direction



Detailed front view of top-box panelling

Waste water pipe on the ceiling:

The drain hose is located to the left of the machine when viewed from the infeed side. The drain hose can be pulled out of the top-box panelling by around 600 mm.

Floor drain:

The drain hose must be installed in an arc inside the machine to stop waste water flowing back. The minimum delivery head is 200 mm, measured above the non-return valve in the machine.

Exhaust duct

The machine must be connected to a ventilation or air conditioning system. Each machine requires a constant flow rate of $350 \text{ m}^3/\text{h}$ for the exhaust duct during operation. The ventilation and air conditioning system above the top-box panelling (TC) must take in a sufficient volume of air to match the exhaust volume. If there is no air intake pipe, top-box panelling with ventilation slots must be used on the infeed side.



View from above of top-box panelling (TC)

If the machine is connected to an air conditioning system, a steam condenser must be installed upstream to remove moisture from the exhaust air.

If the machine is connected to an extraction system that is vented into the open air, you do not need a steam condenser.

Install the vent ducting so it slopes in the direction of the exhaust air flow; this is to stop condensate flowing back into the machine. Drain the condensate pipe at the lowest point.

Install separate vent ducting for each machine if possible.

If vent ducting for several machines is being installed together, the output of the on-site exhaust system must be calculated and dimensioned appropriately for the flow rate.

The heat output during operation must be removed by the ventilation and air conditioning system.

Steam condenser (optional)

If the machine's vent ducting is connected to an air conditioning system, a steam condenser must be installed upstream to remove moisture from the exhaust air.

The steam condenser must be operated in combination with a drying unit.

Install stopcocks in the steam condenser's water inlet on the customer's site.

The stopcocks must be accessible after the machine has been installed.

Steam condenserThe steam condenser (SC) can be connected to cold water or a cool-
ing circuit provided on the customer's site.

Connected to cold water

You need a cold water connection on the customer's premises for the steam condenser's water inlet. The connection hose has an inner diameter of 13 mm.

The water from the steam condenser is routed to the machine's drainage via a free-flowing section.

Connected to a cooling circuit

To connect the steam condenser to the cooling circuit, you need 3/4" control valves and a conversion kit with two connecting hoses (optional accessories). The connecting hoses have an inner diameter of 13 mm and are 2000 mm long.

The solenoid valves supplied with the machine and the free-flowing section are not used.

Connection module

	The machine is fitted with a connection module whose potential-free inputs and outputs can be used to query operating statuses and control external components. The connection module contains 3 plugs: plug 5 (yellow) has 4 inputs, plug 6 (green) has 5 outputs and plug 7 (red) has 4 outputs.
	The assignment of the inputs is fixed. The voltage at the inputs must be 200–240 V AC.
	The assignment of the outputs can be modified, see table "Possible assignment of potential-free outputs". The voltage at the outputs of a plug can be either 12–24 V DC or 200–240 V AC.
	The same voltage must be used at all the outputs in a particular plug.
	Damage to the relay contacts The outputs on the connection module must not be loaded with more than 1 A to protect the relay contacts from damage. Attach external connector relays or contactors if higher ratings are switched at the outputs of the connection module.
Inputs	 Peak-load negotiation of the electric heating Fill level monitoring for the external dispenser canisters Dispensing monitoring for the external dispenser pumps External message

Installation notes

Potential-free outputs

Parameter	The contact is activated	
Off	-	
Active drying	When the drying unit is active	
Programme running	When a programme is running	
Operation	When the machine is switched on	
Malfunction	When a fault is present	
Infeed side door status	When the door on the infeed side is opened	
Outfeed side door status	When the door on the outfeed side is opened	
Programme finished	Between the end of the programme and opening the door	
Pause with rinse	When the water intake is active in the Pause programme stage	
Drainage Standard	When standard water drainage is active during the pro- gramme sequence	
Drainage Recycling	When recycling water drainage is active during the pro- gramme sequence	
Cold valve		
Valve hot	During water intake through the set valve	
Demin. cold		
Demin. hot		
Cold valve delayed	During water intake through the set valve:	
Valve hot delayed	a. Delayed by the set "Water intake start delay"	
Demin. cold delayed	b. Brought forwards by the set "Water intake stop delay"	
Demin. hot delayed		
DOS 7 external	As a signal for external dispenser pump 7	
DOS 8 external	As a signal for external dispenser pump 8	
DOS 9 external	As a signal for external dispenser pump 9	
DOS 10 external	As a signal for external dispenser pump 10	
DOS 1 control	When dispenser pump 1 is active	
DOS 2 control	When dispenser pump 2 is active	
DOS 3 control	When dispenser pump 3 is active	
DOS 4 control	When dispenser pump 4 is active	
DOS 5 control	When dispenser pump 5 is active	
DOS 6 control	When dispenser pump 6 is active	
External drainage contact	When the "External drainage contact" parameter is active while water is draining	

Dimensions

Height including plinth	1770 mm
Height including plinth and top-box panelling	2495 mm
Width	900 mm
Depth	990 mm

Weight

Version	PLW 8615 EL
Net weight including plinth and top-box panelling	452 kg
Net weight including EL/S, DU, SC, CT	624 kg
Operating weight	800 kg
Max individual load (5 cm ² foot)	1308 N
Max. surface load (load-bearing capacity of floor)	8.8 kN/m ²
Optional extras	
Steam heating/electric heating (EL/S)	5 kg
Drying unit (DU)	115 kg
Steam condenser (SC)	52 kg
Combi tank (CT)	13.5 kg

Electrical connection

Voltage	3N AC 400 V	
Frequency	50 Hz	
Fuse rating	3 x 32–35 A	
Heater rating	18 kW	
Total rated load	20 kW	
Mains connection cable cross-section	5 x 6	
Mains connection cable on customer's site, length inside TC	1.5 m	
Connection	CEE	
Dual-heated machines in "steam" heating mode (optional)		

Fuse rating	3 x 20 A
Total rated load	10 kW

Steam connection (optional)

Quality	Dry industrial steam
Steam pressure	250–1000 kPa
Peak capacity for steam and condensate pipe	50 kg/h
Steam pipe, with stopcock on customer's site, flat-sealing ex- ternal thread	3/4"
Condensate pipe, with stopcock on customer's site, flat-seal- ing external thread	1/2"

Compressed air connection

Compressed air, technical grade	ISO 8573-1: Class 4
Pressure	600–800 kPa
Peak capacity	5 l/min
Connection on the customer's site with stopcock and socket with \mathcal{Q} quick-release lock	1/2"

Water inlet

Water connections	
- Cold water	2
- Hot water	1
- Demineralised water	2
Water temperature	
- Cold water	5–20 °C
- Hot water	5–65 °C
- Demineralised water	5–65 °C
Connection on the customer's site with stopcock, flat-sealing external thread	3/4"
Water connection pressure	200–1000 kPa
Flow rate	14 l/min
Max. water hardness	0.710 mmol/l / 4 °dH
Demineralised water	
Recommended conductivity	<15 µS/cm
Chloride content	<100 mg/l
pH value	5–8
Steam condenser (optional)	
Water temperature	5–20 °C
Connection on the customer's site with stopcock, flat-sealing external thread	3/4"

Drainage

Drain valve (DV)

Without steam condenser

Max. water temperature	94 °C
Max. transient flow rate	162 l/min
Drain connection on the customer's site for the machine	DN 50
Drain connection on the customer's site for the floor tray	DN 50
Waste water pipe	≥ DN 100
Drain pump (DP) (optional)	
Max. water temperature	94 °C
Max. transient flow rate	162 l/min
Min. delivery head	200 mm
Max. delivery head	3000 mm
Hose inner diameter (Ø)	22 mm
Waste water pipe	≥ DN 100
Cooling circuit* (optional)	
Cooling capacity	3.5 kW
Spread	6/12 °C
Max. connection pressure	800 kPa
Pressure loss in steam condenser	25 kPa
* In combination with a steam condenser	
Exhaust air	
Exhaust duct	DN 125
Flow rate during operation	350 m ³ /h*
Temperature With steam condenser Without steam condenser	45–48 °C 70–95 °C
Relative humidity With steam condenser	65–100 %

* The ventilation and air conditioning system must take in a sufficient volume of air within the top-box panelling; alternatively, if there is no air intake pipe, top-box panelling with ventilation slots is available for use on the infeed side.

80-100 %

Technical data

Operating conditions

Ambient temperature	5–40 °C
Relative humidity: Minimum Maximum, for temperatures up to 31 °C Linear decreasing for temperatures up to 40 °C	10 % 80 % 50 %
Max. altitude above sea level	1500 m
Emission values	
Heat dissipation	
Infeed/outfeed side	600 W
Load items once unloaded	1400 W
Sound pressure level	
Sound pressure level LpA during cleaning and drying	<65 dB(A) re 20 µPa
Storage and transportation conditions	
Ambient temperature	-20 to +60 °C
Relative humidity	10–85 %
Air pressure	500–1060 hPa
Maximum floor load on transport route	6 kN
Site access dimensions including transport pallet	
Height	1960 mm
Width	1000 mm
Depth	1130 mm

Míele

United Kingdom

Miele Co. Ltd., Fairacres, Marcham Road Abingdon, Oxon, OX14 1TW Professional Sales, Tel: 0845 365 6608 E-mail: professional@miele.co.uk Internet: www.miele.co.uk/professional

Australia

Miele Australia Pty. Ltd. ACN 005 635 398, ABN 96 005 635 398 Level 4, 141 Camberwell Road, Hawthorn East, VIC 3123 Tel: 1300 731 411 Internet: www.miele.com.au/professional E-mail: sales@miele-professional.com.au

China Mainland

Miele Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd. 1-3 Floor, No. 82 Shi Men Yi Road Jing' an District, 200040 Shanghai, PRC Tel: +86 21 6157 3500, Fax: +86 21 6157 3511 E-mail: info@miele.cn, Internet: www.miele.cn

Hong Kong, China

Miele (Hong Kong) Ltd. 41/F - 4101, Manhattan Place 23 Wang Tai Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong Tel: (852) 2610 1025, Fax: (852) 3579 1404 Email: customerservices@miele.com.hk Website: www.miele.hk

India

Miele India Pvt. Ltd. 1st Floor, Copia Corporate Suites, Commercial Plot 9, Mathura Road, Jasola, New Delhi - 110025 E-mail: customercare@miele.in, Website: www.miele.in

Ireland

Miele Ireland Ltd. 2024 Bianconi Ave., Citywest Business Campus, Dublin 24 Tel: (01) 461 07 10, Fax: (01) 461 07 97 E-Mail: info@miele.ie, Internet: www.miele.ie



Manufacturer: Miele & Cie. KG Carl-Miele-Straße 29, 33332 Gütersloh, Germany

Malaysia

Miele Sdn Bhd Suite 12-2, Level 12 Menara Sapura Kencana Petroleum Solaris Dutamas No. 1, Jalan Dutamas 1 50480 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia Phone: +603-6209-0288 Fax: +603-6205-3768

New Zealand

Miele New Zealand Limited IRD 98 463 631 8 College Hill Freemans Bay, Auckland 1011, NZ Tel: 0800 464 353 Internet: www.miele.com.au/professional E-mail: sales@miele-professional.com.au

Singapore

Miele Pte. Ltd. 29 Media Circle, #11-04 ALICE@Mediapolis Singapore 138565 Tel: +65 6735 1191, Fax: +65 6735 1161 E-Mail: info@miele.com.sg Internet: www.miele.sg

South Africa

Miele (Pty) Ltd 63 Peter Place, Bryanston 2194 P.O. Box 69434, Bryanston 2021 Tel: (011) 875 9000, Fax: (011) 875 9035 E-mail: info@miele.co.za Internet: www.miele.co.za

United Arab Emirates

Miele Appliances Ltd. Showroom 1, Eiffel 1 Building Sheikh Zayed Road, Umm Al Sheif P.O. Box 114782 - Dubai Tel. +971 4 3044 999, Fax. +971 4 3418 852 800-MIELE (64353) E-Mail: info@miele.ae, Website: www.miele.ae